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CHAIR BAISA: The Planning Committee Meeting of the Maui County Council will come to
order. It is ten minutes after 9:00 on October 2nd, 2007. I am the Planning Committee
Chair, Councilmember Baisa from the Up country, and we have a quorum here today. I
would like to, before we begin, ask everyone if you would please disable the noise on
your cell phones, or beepers, or any other noise making things that you might have with
you. It will help us so that we can move the meeting along.
I'd like to make introductions. This morning I have my Committee Members. I have
Vice-Chair Jo Anne Johnson.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Aloha.
CHAIR BAISA: Good morning, Jo Anne. And Councilmember Bill Medeiros.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Aloha and good morning, Madam Chair.
CHAIR BAISA: Good morning. Councilmember Mike Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Good morning.
CHAIR BAISA: Good morning. And joining us our Chair of the Council, Member of this
Committee, Riki Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Good morning.
CHAIR BAISA: Good morning. And with us also we have our Staff that help us with this
process. We have Deputy, Deputy Corporation Counsel Michael Hopper.
MR. HOPPER: Good morning.
CHAIR BAISA: And we have our Planning Director Jeff Hunt.
MR. HUNT: Good morning.
CHAIR BAISA: And, Jeff, would you like to introduce your staff please?
MR. HUNT: We've got our legislative guru Joe Alueta; our long-range planner, Kathleen Aoki;
and in the audience we have a couple other staff members Erin Wade and Mark from the
Long-Range Division.
CHAIR BAISA: Thank you very much. And also with us today we have our regular Planning
Committee Staff, David Raatz, our Legislative Attorney, and Clarita Balala, our
Committee Secretary. Thank you everybody for being here this morning. We have quite
a few things to deal with today.
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Public testimony will be accepted for all items on the agenda starting in a few moments.
Those wishing to testify should sign up at the secretary's desk. Testimony shall be
limited to three minutes and testifiers are requested to state their name for the record and
to indicate if they are representing anyone but themselves.
We have four items on our agenda today all relating to long-range planning. PC-22,
relating to the County's possible membership in an international environmental
organization called ICLEI, I-C-L-E-I, Local Governments for Sustainability; PC-2,
relating to the General Plan Update; PC-23, relating to a possible Maui Island
Infrastructure Study; and PC-32, relating to infrastructure studies for the town of Paia,
Maui.
ITEM NO. 22:

COUNTY MEMBERSHIP IN ICLEI - LOCAL GOVERNMENTS FOR
SUSTAINABILITY (e.c. No. 07-256)

CHAIR BAlSA: Our first Item is PC-22 relating to the County's possible membership in ICLEI,
I-C-L-E-I, Local Governments for Sustainability, a coalition of more than 600 local
governments and municipal associations who are committed to sustainable development.
They were previously known as the International Center for Local Environmental
Initiatives. They provide technical services, data, and research to support the local
incentives of member organizations. I have distributed some written information about
the benefits of membership. For the viewing public I note that additional information is
available at the website iclei.org. One of the most notable ICLEI programs is Cities for
Climate Protection which helps local governments and their communities reduce
greenhouse gas emissions. On behalf of the Administration, our Mayor Tavares has
pledged support for the Cities for Climate Protection program.
Today we will consider whether the Council should also endorse this program by
resolution which is a prerequisite for the County's membership in ICLEI. Before we
review the resolution I will now accept public testimony on PC-22. In addition, I will
accept testimony on other items in the agenda for anyone who can't wait until that item
comes up. Do ... Madam Secretary, any testifiers on PC-22?
MS. BALALA: No.
CHAIR BAlSA: There being none we will just move on, and I will close all the testimony at
once in case somebody comes later.
Members, do you have the resolution before you? And I will be very interested in your
comments or questions. Vice-Chair Johnson.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yes, I, you know, because I've read the resolution, and I totally
support the purpose and intent, and in addition to the access to the information that such
an organization provides, because it's one more resource that we would have at our
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disposal. And I just was looking at which, I guess, fee structure would be applicable.
And so do you, out of the three categories, know which would be applicable here in Maui
County?
CHAIR BAlSA: Yes, it will be ... for us the dues are $1,750, and it's because of our size and the
category that we fall in.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Okay. And then, then that would be an annual fee paid, and do we
have, I guess, our budget ... , it would come out of our operating budget from Council; is
that correct?
CHAIR BAlSA: I'm not sure. I will have to ask Council Chair who is our, our guru -VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Okay.
CHAIR BAlSA: --on where money comes from. Council Chair, -COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Yes.
CHAIR BAlSA: --could you help me please?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: It is my understanding, Madam Chair, that ... well, first I
think we need to ask a few questions, Chair, -CHAIR BAlSA: Sure. Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: --of regarding this consideration. And if it is the County of
Maui and the Mayor is going to be the one that moves the membership forward, then I
would expect this will be paid from the Administration.
CHAIR BAlSA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: And more than likely Planning Department funds.
CHAIR BAlSA: Well, thank you. I'd like to ask the Planning Director if he has some
comments on this issue. Mr. Hunt?
MR. HUNT: Thank you, Chair. I've just done some preliminary research. I went on their
website, et cetera, and what, what I would note for your information is there's
approximately 650 public jurisdictions that are members of this organization. And the
organization, the jurisdictions that I looked at noted that some of them were involved
with tourism and that they're tourist communities such as Aspen, Colorado. There's also
some very large cities, New York City. There's some, at least one Hawaiian jurisdiction.
Honolulu is a member. There's also what I, across the political spectrum I think it's well
represented is Boulder, Colorado, which in Colorado is sometimes referred to as Planet
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Boulder because they're so far out there. On the other extreme is Houston, Texas, which
the last time I checked, didn't even have zoning. So I think there's a full spectrum of
political organizations.
The, the Planning Department would ask you to weigh the benefits of joining the
organization versus the strings attached. Usually there's some kind of commitment that
goes along with that benefit. It, in this instance it appears that a study would have to be
committed to, to analyze the baseline, and then have some plan adopted that would then
have to be implemented, and then measurements, and, and monitoring occurring. And
we're just bringing that to your attention and make sure that you folks are, are informed
in your decision making.
CHAIR BAlSA: Any more comments?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Madam Chair?
CHAIR BAlSA: Yes, Mr. Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: I think the Director brings up some good points, because I've
read the five points I believe he's referring to which is the, the need to have an
assessment or a study as you ... , which is that greenhouse gas emissions. So, one, that
and who's going to pay for it, and how much are we looking at? Two, when we look at
this point to establish an emissions reduction target is, do we already have targets that the
State has set as standards for us to achieve that you know of, Mr. Director? I know we
have some goals that we are trying to reduce regarding fossil fuel, and I don't know if
this plays a part of the State's efforts to reduce our redependency [sic] on foreign oil
fossil fuel.
MR. HUNT: The Planning Department's not aware of any specific mandated goals that we're
forced to, or obligated to comply with.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: And then, third, is the development of an action plan. So I'm
looking at Planning Department would be the branch that we would more, and then likely
match your, look for to assist the County in developing an action plan including then the
implementation and, and the progress of those efforts. So, do you have a rough, excuse
me, estimate of what you think we're committing financially upfront? If, if we should ... ,
if, you know, just by joining and paying the 1,750, we're saying that we're willing to do
this inventory for greenhouse, we're willing to do source and quantity inventory, we're
willing to have a target reduction, we're willing to do a development plan and
implementation plan, so can you give us an assessment of your Department's ability,
right now, and what do you think might, we might be looking at financially?
MR. HUNT: Let me defer to Joe Alueta on that.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Thank you.
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CHAIR BAISA: Mr. Alueta.
MR. ALUET A: Thank you, Madam Chair. No, we, I, I don't think you can really estimate at
this point given those studies. I'm not exactly, I think from our Department's standpoint,
you can do a lot of reduction and other things without actually having to do the study. It
would be nice to have a very expensive study to estimate what your overall carbon
emissions are, and then establish a very complex and expensive carbon emission
monitoring. But if you already have the goal of reducing it, you can, there's a lot of
things you can do to implement it. It has come up during the, the, the, GP AC meetings
and there are languages being inserted by the various commissions as well as, as well as
GP AC committees. But, like I say, this is kind of a broad issue. If you think it's
something you're going to do, then I guess drill down to the various levels not only, not
necessarily studies, but you know, funding of or supporting legislation, which where I
come in whereas, you know, in modifying some of your code standards that, that is either
smart growth in their, in their vision or in reducing the amount of raw materials and
carbon emissions that are required either by roadway standards, more compact design of,
of, of subdivisions.
And, and there's a wide variety as well as internally from the County where you get your
sources. From the State level there is only the, the broad goal of having, I believe, it's a
20 percent of having a renewable -COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Source for the ...
MR. ALUETA: --the source for energy, for energy sources and requiring that from the, the
Hawaiian Electric. So, like, like I say, I think there's a lot of things that can be done. If
you recognize that you need to reduce carbon emissions and, and the growth of carbon
emissions, you can do without having the, actually have the study of how much you are
producing now as long as there's a will.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Yeah. So, Mr. Alueta, in, in, in your years and, you know,
with the Director next to you, does the Department currently have data information
regarding these subject areas currently that could be beneficial to this Committee at this
time?
MR. HUNT: Not that I'm aware of.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. But, you know, the Committee is aware that, you
know, obviously the United States does not participate in the Kyoto Protocol and a
hundred and what 78 other countries do, and that they are now working on the next
update, and I don't know what they're going to call it, but there's a clock that's ticking on
the current protocol, and I believe it's going to expire 2010, 2012, somewhere around
that, that period. So I know other countries are in, in the process of trying to I guess
something already to dovetail the termination of the current policy. Does it make sense
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for us to watch what our Federal Government does, or shall we just move on and ...
because definitely, you know, you're from the ... we're going to have a new
administration in the White House. Yeah, so this lame duck administration is basically
just that, lame.
So saying that, well as a planner you're going to the GPAC process right now with our
advisory committees. Do you have suggestions on how we can approach it besides just
joining? You know, I, I would hope we would at least have some sense of a plan of if we
join, this is what we are willing to do and willing to make commitments forward. And so
if this has some funding involved, then I would like to at least make a reasoned decision
that I know my decision on this membership means I'm actually going to commit "x"
amount of County dollars to take care of the five milestones, as they call it, for this
County. And right now you're telling me you have no idea what it's going to cost. It can
be nothing, or it could be a hell of a lot.
MR. HUNT: Madam Chair?
CHAIR BAlSA: Yes, go right ahead.
MR. HUNT: We don't have an idea of what it would cost. I mean we could throw out some
ballpark figures. Generally, studies of this nature cost several hundred thousand dollars,
and then you have to implement them and that requires staff time. I don't think the study
or the idea of this organization is contrary to the path that the County is heading down at
this point. There are draft policies in the, in the General Plan that speak to environmental
issues such as global warming and addressing that. It's just a matter of priorities and,
and, and money. There's a, the draft plan has a number of priorities and, and a number of
policies that are suggested for the County to follow, and there's plenty of good ideas,
there's only so much time. And if this is a priority that the County wants to follow I
don't think the Planning Department is going to object. It's a, it's a great idea. Is it, is it
the best idea or one of the top priorities I think is the question you folks need to deal with.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Currently, if we move forward, do you have staff you could,
that you have available to assign to this task, or is that going to be an issue for us in the
next budget review?
MR. HUNT: We would probably ask for additional staff, otherwise, we would have to reduce or
reassign duties.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: And is your preference to ask for more staff? Can this be
contracted out?
MR. HUNT: We would have to contract it out I believe. I don't think we have the personnel
that have the expertise to do it.
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COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: You have an understanding or Mr. Alueta has from past
practice and experience have an idea of what this kind of contract might cost? We won't
hold you to it, but we just want to have a sense of what we're talking about; $100,000,
$500,000?
CHAIR BAlSA: I think the Chair is trying to figure out, you know, if we decide to go ahead
with the membership, the $1,750 dues is like a down payment, but then we will be asked
to produce some, five, five tasks that they want us to do, and they could cost additional
time and money, and Chair's trying to get a handle on what that is.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Well, while Planning Department is -CHAIR BAlSA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: --contemplating a response if I can ask Mr. Hopper?
CHAIR BAlSA: Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: If we authorize this resolution, do you see it that we also
would need a resolution to authorize the Mayor to, to enter? Is this, is this, would this be
considered an intergovernmental agreement of, of, of a sort, Mr. Hopper? Because if that
is so, then I would like us to at least be prepared to have that resolution be in place so that
we take care of the authorization and the membership at one time.
CHAIR BAlSA: Mr. Hopper?
MR. HOPPER: Thank you, Madam Chair. My initial, my initial assessment would be no,
because you're not entering into an agreement with, I think generally intergovernmental
agreements deal with State and Federal government. This does have a financial
obligation involved in it, however, I don't, I don't necessarily ...
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: And that's my concern, Mr. Hopper.
MR. HOPPER: Right. I don't necessarily see this as an agreement with another government,
it's with an organization. I'm not sure how that's been interpreted in the past though. I
mean it's not like, you know, an agreement with the State, Federal government, or
another State. But, you know, I guess one interpretation could be it's an agreement
among many different jurisdictions. But your agreements with the organization and, I
mean I suppose that organization is made up of other governments. We could look at
that, but initially I would say, no, because it's, it's different than the classical sense of,
you know, what an intergovernmental agreement is. But, you know, and, and obviously
if, if it is considered an intergovernmental agreement after we look at it, then you would
need a resolution to enter into it.
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At this point, the only financial obligation I, as I can see guaranteed is the, the 1,750 for
dues, and the other sort of implementation of the, of the membership, you know, I believe
you have broad discretion in assigning how exactly you would go about, you know,
following those mandates and which departments you decide would follow-up with those.
But initially, I would say it does not appear to be an intergovernmental agreement, but
you do raise an interesting point I think.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Have you had a chance to review the charter of this
organization because they refer to a charter? Madam Chair, for, for your point of
reference is attached to the resolution that you have shared for us -CHAIR BAlSA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: --under Exhibit 1, at the bottom, and this is the interesting
part. After we pay them the money, then they say they're going to send us a copy of the
charter which is kind of interesting that we are to abide by this charter. So I'm just
asking if you had a chance, Mr. Hopper, since it says all members are governed by the
ICLEI Charter and a copy of the charter was sent to the primary contact, but that is after
the verbiage, after receipt of the membership fees.
MR. HOPPER: I have not had a chance to review the charter, but you know, I, so I'm not sure if
we can get it prior to paying the fees. I assume that we can get a copy of it, or to, to find
its contents to make sure, you know, we wouldn't be bound beyond what we would
expect to be at this point. I mean it's, the implementing actions that it suggests are quite
vague as to any specifics. So, but I'm not familiar with the charter at this point.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Thank you for your response, Mr. Hopper. Madam Chair, if
Mr. Director, Planning Director has a comment back from my previous question please.
CHAIR BAlSA: Mr. Hunt, any comments?
MR. HUNT: Here's some examples of recent studies. The 2003 infrastructure assessment
which I believe is on your agenda today cost $149,000. A public facilities study
conducted in 2002 cost $125,000.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. And you would think that you would need at least a
planner for, for this?
MR. HUNT: At least.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: And that would be about it? You, you wouldn't need, just
one planner you think would be sufficient?
MR. HUNT: I would think so. I don't think that you'd, I don't think you would hire one planner
just for this one study. But it would be difficult ... , again, if the direction is to make do
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with what we have, we can do that. It would just be something else drops off the, the
screen.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: You know, I'm just trying to get a very broad and general
understanding because I see us making a decision for a commitment down the road, and I
just would like to know what we're committing to. Thank you, Madam Chair.
CHAIR BAlSA: Thank you, Chair. Mr. Medeiros.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Madam Chair. I just want to follow-up on some of
the questions. It seems like we don't have very much information on this organization as
it stands, but you know, thank you for the information that's been included in our binders.
What is the possibility of having a representative present for a presentation and a Q and
A? It seems like we're asking people that are not that familiar with this organization.
Why don't we go straight to the horse's mouth and get information from them? Would
that be a possibility? I see they're based in Oakland, California; is that correct?
CHAIR BAlSA: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: And that's just, you know, across the pond. Wouldn't we
be able to get them here, or do they have a representative in Hawaii?
CHAIR BAlSA: Member Medeiros, I'm sorry, but I'm not familiar if they have anyone here.
And, you know, my motto is anything's possible if we want to make it happen. I don't
know if that would involve us having to pay to bring somebody here or that they would
come. But we did not research that and that can be done if it' s the wish of the Members.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: I, I would recommend we do that because we don't know
what our financial obligation is going to be other than the annual dues. We don't know
how, how much beyond that we're committing ourselves to. And the other part is it
seems like this has a lot to do with our environment, and I was wondering if Planning or
the Environmental Management Department would work on this or work in concert on
this. You know, we have a new Department called Environmental Management, and I
was wondering if they would playa role in this.
But I, I, I would say that, like Council Chair Hokama brought up, how can we commit to
something that we don't know what their charter is about, and we have to abide by it if
we commit our membership to it. So I would say even though they can provide the
software for us to look at, according to the information, I would say that a representative
would be a better source of information for us especially on the Q and A part.
And the other part I was going to ask is Director Hunt mentioned that in Hawaii we have
one jurisdiction that's a member. Is that City and County or the State of Oahu?
CHAIR BAlSA: Director Hunt?
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MR. HUNT: According to their website they listed it as Honolulu so I assume it's City and
County.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: It just said Honolulu? It didn't say what government?
MR. HUNT: No, but it, it just simply said Honolulu.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. That'd be another source for, of information for us is
to find out what agency that is or what government level that is, and ask them how has
their experience been with it. And, but I, I think we need to gather more information and
specific information before, you know, we go forward with this. And that's, you know,
just my manao on it. Mahalo.
CHAIR BAlSA: Thank you very much, Member Medeiros. I fully anticipated that this very
astute group of folks who weigh issues very well and look at all sides of them, and you
know, we are, you know, as the guardians of public money and public resources to make
sure that we ask all the questions before we jump, but this organization comes highly
recommended. Some of our folks here at the County already confer with them. But
because we are not members, you know, it's like I'm familiar a lot with AWW A because
my husband's a member, and they have a website that is available to members. And if
you're a member you have access to information, and studies, and workshops, and
information which the browsing person does not have access to because you have to be a
member in order to get a pen [sicj, a PIN and go on the site.
So it's the same thing here that while we can get some information, in order for us to
really get to what we need we would have to be members. So I knew that there would be
many questions. I think it's very important that we raise all those questions, and then
what we could do is work on trying to fill in the blanks, and then coming back with more
information and maybe then being able to pass a resolution. So let's have, you know, a
lot of questions and good discussion, and we'll follow through. Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah, thank you, Madam Chair. First of all, I, I believe the
intent of the ICLEI is good, but to me at this point there's too many unknowns. And first
and foremost if they want us to be part of their organizations, I will not support funding
someone to come here. You know, they got to do that at their own expense first and
foremost. And I'd like to get the input from Oahu, whether it be Oahu County or the
State. I think they should provide more, more clarity to us on that.
And I think we need to know what, what is Maui County getting out of this? If we join
this, what will be the benefit to this County? And, you know, we join this thing, then
what? Because we're going to have to produce some type of action plan and that's going
to be in the hundreds of thousands. So we don't know the exact figure to that. So there's
this unknown cost to the County that I'm concerned with. And our Planning Department
is stretched out as it is already. So we don't know what kind of impact it's going to have
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on their staffing and their workload. So, I think these are some real important things that
we have to consider.
So, yeah, I think we need to gather all the information first before we make any move,
and, and if they can't be here in person, then I would like some direct correspondence
from them because, you know, we don't have that here today. So I'd like to hear it from
the horse's mouth, and they're going to have to sell this, at least for me. They have to
sell this to me and convince me that this is something beneficial to Maui County, because
there is going to be a cost to the taxpayer with this. So those are my comments, Madam
Chair. Thank you.
CHAIR BAlSA: Wonderful. Thank you very much. Member Johnson?
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yes, and, and perhaps they have a downloadable PowerPoint
presentation which oftentimes organizations when they're doing membership advocacy
they will have that available, and it may be downloadable. The, the, I basically, you
know, from what I've read support the purpose and intent of this. I think that if you and,
and Chair Hokama had mentioned the Kyoto Protocol, if you've been watching the
debate of global warming and climate change, and particularly the unprecedented melting
of the icecap which in recorded history is just astronomical. Just the sea level rise alone
is of great concern and should be of great concern to every single coastal area. And
because we're bounded on all sides by water I think that from a planning perspective the
information that can be gathered, and you know, what we can do I guess in the scheme of
things may be limited in ... (change tape, start IE) . .. terms of what we're actually able to
do in our own reduction of greenhouse gas emissions. But I think overall the information
from an educational perspective that we would gain from participation in an organization
such as this is really helpful because both Planning and Public Works have to evaluate,
and the General Plan Advisory Committee, has to evaluate where our future growth will
occur.
And to me our coastal properties which now are getting the prime dollars, I have always
looked at them like I've looked in the Carolinas and having lived in the U.S. Virgin
Islands, you don't want to be anywhere near the coastline when a hurricane comes, a
tsunami, or some kind of a storm event where coastal erosion occurs. So I think those
kinds of things will help our Planning Department and Public Works to frame legislation,
and I know we did the setback, shoreline setback rules, which, you know, may have to be
adjusted again because if our erosion rate continues, then the people who now own
coastal properties may be at risk both in their lives and loss of property far, I guess, in a
far greater extent than they currently are. So I don't want to encourage people to buy or
want to build on coastal properties. That's, you know, tantamount I guess in some
respects to buying swamp land in Florida. It, it really is not an attractive place to build if
global warming continues and the sea levels rise.
So from my perspective I think the information that we would gather from participation
in the organization would be of extreme value. I think that some of the things we've
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already done have been really good in terms of our energy independence, the wind farm,
some of the other things we're looking at, fill crops, also the recycling that we've done,
some of these efforts, even the bottle bill to keep things out of the landfill. And I think
that it's worth exploration. I also note that in the information provided they do have
software available and much like the software that's available for doing other studies,
once you input certain information, it will actually compute what would be an estimated
emission for you. I, I believe that's the same type of software that they're talking about
that would be available to us. So I look at that and I see that there is value. So, Madam
Chair, I do support this. Out of respect for the other Members to, to get the rest of the
information I think that's important. And, you know, I look forward to receiving that at
the next meeting. Thank you.
CHAIR BAlSA: Thank you very much. I think for the information of the people who are not as
close to this as we are the Planning Committee has a very broad mandate, and I think
sometimes they forget, or we forget that our Committee also includes energy concerns,
environmental concerns, and transportation concerns. And so, of course, this is one of
our mandates because of the environmental issue. And I think that it's a really good idea
for us to pursue. I appreciate all the input this morning. It's been very valuable. We'll
proceed, and we have great notes here, we'll check and see what more we can get
together. We'll try to get a representative. I would, I can also discuss this with
Ms. Okuma, our new Director of the Environmental Department, and get her thoughts,
and then we can come back. Mr. Hokama?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: If!, if! may, I have a few more questions for -CHAIR BAlSA: Surely. Go right ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: --Mr. Hunt, please.
CHAIR BAlSA: Let's get them on the record so we'll try to address all of them.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Thank you, Madam Chair. Director Hunt, I'm not sure of the
Department's participation, but you know, Senator Kokubun from the Big Island and, and
a lot of other members of the general community have been working on this Hawaii
Sustainability Conference, and my understanding is you folks have participated. Has this
topic been part of the discussion of the Hawaii Sustainability Conference that, that you
have so far been able to either attend or be made aware of?
MR. HUNT: I, I believe it's part of the 2050 Sustainable Plan. I'm not sure in the exact precise
language, but I believe that there's a reference to it. The 2050 Plan in my mind commits
the State to establish targets and set up a council that would then monitor compliance or
implementation of those targets, and it's not a mandatory or regulatory council, it's more
of a leadership, guidance, monitoring Statewide council. I see this organization or your
commitment from the County as being more specific to the Maui County itself. And
again it's not inconsistent with the 2050 Plan, it's not inconsistent with the draft General
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Plan that we're going down. It ... and the Planning Department thinks it's a good idea to,
to reduce carbon emissions. That's not the issue.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Well, I just was curious as to what efforts Hawaii is going
through since, you know, it's been over a year since this discussion of sustainability has
been going on. And as we look at this potential organization it is local governments for
sustainability. And while I assume that one of the targets is the greenhouse emissions
issue, I would also think there are other components of sustainability, Madam Chair, that
we, we obviously would be interested in.
CHAIR BAlSA: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: But I would like to at least have an understanding, well, this
would be of a maybe more than likely a national perspective. We already are aware of
efforts to kinda bring it back home so that from a State perspective, and then how Maui
County fits in that State perspective, of sustainability particularly with our General Plan
Update efforts. You know, timing couldn't have been better -CHAIR BAlSA: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: --for us. So I'm just curious to see what our Planning
Department's efforts are in this. At this point, are you folks participating in providing
ideas or concepts that is to our benefit, or are you folks basically just, at this time,
participating and hearing what others have to say about this sustainability issue including
the energy and greenhouse effects, Mr. Hunt?
MR. HUNT: At the 2050 Plan or in general?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Yes. Yeah, I'm, I'm talking about the, the Statewide effort
on sustainability.
MR. HUNT: I've been, I was appointed a member of the task force for the 2050 Plan. I
attended virtually all the meetings. It is a task force. I, I think the plan generally is, is a
good plan.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: When do you think there will be something that you could
report back to this Committee that could assist us in our efforts with items such as this?
Do you folks have a target date whereby you would be concluding this portion of the
process, and you could give us comments of Maui County's role in this Statewide
efforts?
MR. HUNT: There's four public meetings scheduled in the next several weeks. One on Lanai,

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Right.
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MR. HUNT: --one on Molokai, -COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Right.
MR. HUNT: --two on Maui. And then the plan, there's discussion about taking the plans to the
four Councils, the four island Councils and asking for some kind of endorsement, and it
still hasn't been decided on how, on the exact endorsement that will be requested, or even
if we will do that. But it's being discussed.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. So it's something in the near future you're thinking?
MR. HUNT: Yes, the, the long-term plan is to take it to the Legislature in early '08.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. Okay. You think they're going to be requesting
money? Because then I would like to know if we have a potential pool of, of funding
source, Madam Chair, that we could possibly consider applying for to assist us with such
things as a greenhouse study.
MR. HUNT: That's a good comment. The, one of the ideas behind the 2050 Plan, the
Sustainability Plan, is not to regulate but to provide incentives. And so the, the task force
will go to the legislation, Legislature and ask for adoption of the plan, but also ask for
funding to then provide incentives to the county to help implement the plan. So there is a
potential revenue source for Maui County there.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: That would be terrific, Mr. Hunt, if we can have that be done.
And, and my last question, Madam Chair. Do you think this will be, or are you aware, is
this going to be part of the overall State plan, as one component of the updated State
plan?
MR. HUNT: It's been clear that it's not to replace the existing State plan, but to augment it or
update it and become part of the existing State plan.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Hunt. Thank you.
CHAIR BAlSA: Thank you, Chair. I'd like to also get on the record, and for those who may not
be aware, the Hawaii 2050 Sustainability Plan draft, there will be meetings held very
near, in the very near future on Monday, October 8th, 5:30 p.m. to 8:00, at the MEO
Offices in Wailuku, and another on Saturday, October 13th, 8: 30 to 11: 00 at the MACC,
Maui Arts and Cultural Center, Haynes Meeting Room. Also, if you'd like to go online,
the draft plan is online at www.hawaii2050.org and I think it's really important that you
take the time to take a look at this.
We had the opportunity, some of us who attended the Hawaii Congress of Planning
Officials in Kona, and I was able to attend a session with Senator Russell Kokubun who
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is leading this effort, and also our Jeff Hunt was there. And it was a really good meeting.
There were people from all around the State from many disciplines talking about this, and
it seems that there's a lot of interest in collaborating and working together, and it's very,
it's a very exciting time because not only are we working on this, but we're working on
our General Plan. And I think there's a great emphasis now on looking at the future and
how we can avoid some of the things that have happened because we didn't do a very
good job of planning.
And so I want to thank my Members for all of your questions. We have our homework,
and we'll get to work, my Staff and I, and when we have the information with your
permission and no objections, I would like to defer this item today.
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
ACTION:

DEFER PENDING FURTHER DISCUSSION.

CHAIR BAlSA: Thank you very much. Okay. Let's go on to our next agenda item.
ITEM NO. 2:

GENERAL PLAN UPDATE; SOCIO-ECONOMIC FORECAST

(C.C.

Nos. 07-54 & 06-297)

CHAIR BAlSA: Our next agenda item is PC-2. This is the General Plan Update. We received a
report from the Planning Department seven months ago on the County's efforts to update
the General Plan and we were all here and were informed as to how things were going.
This was consistent with Chapter 2.80B of the Maui County Code and today we'd like to
hear about progress that's been made since then. The General Plan is the County's
preeminent planning document. Chapter 2.80B says that all administrative actions shall
comply with the General Plan. I will be asking the Department for an informal update
shortly.
Before we get into our deliberations, we will accept public testimony on this item.
Madam Secretary, I have one, one. Are there more? We have only one person signed up
to testify on PC-2 this morning and that is Mr. DeGray Vanderbilt. Mr. Vanderbilt.
Good morning.

. .. BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY. ..
MR. VANDERBILT: Good morning, Madam Chair and Members of the Planning Committee.
David was handing out some testimony that I had. You know, I, I had requested to see if
there was a written report to review before this. We just heard about this meeting a few
days ago. One of the planning commissioners picked it up, and called me, and, and I said
that I would come down and say something. Unfortunately, I don't know what kind of
update report you're going to get and what it's going to include, so.
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We, we have some concerns with the process as it's going to date because we, we really
think that, we understand that the Planning Department has lack of staff and everything
else, and, but we feel there's not real good communication between long-range and
current. We're having a lot of problems with impacting our regular Planning
Commission meeting times with the policy plan which takes, for two sections, at least
three hours, probably closer to three and a half hours with public testimony on top of our
normal business. And, and we've been trying to get night meetings. We have this
October 10th meeting coming up where we have not only the TVR ordinance, five
ordinances to be looked at, none of which our Planning Commission has gotten yet, but
we also are being asked to do the policy plan review in our normal business and this just
isn't right for our community.
The Planning Department knows full well that all important issues before our Planning
Commission are generally scheduled at night, but the TVR Bill was scheduled during the
day along with the policy plan review without any consultation with our Commission or
the Chair. We're trying to do our best to, to make this thing work. And as I've pointed
out here there's an email here, we had some points with regard to the schedule, our
inability to get the minutes, from the GP AC minutes from the GP AC meetings to crossreference what was done. We also have a point about the GPAC's being resource people
for the Council and our Planning Commission apparently only two can show up at any
one meeting or it's a violation of the Sunshine Law. We're not quite clear on all that.
And we just have a lot of work that we need to do.
And so I've handed two handouts. One, it covers a lot. I can't do much in three minutes,
Madam Chair. So I'll do the best I can and leave this with you. And the second one is
just a showing, it just says are we just going to go through the motions. And it shows
how this thing started off with ... , Madam Chair, thank you.
CHAIR BAlSA: Mr. Vanderbilt ...
MR. VANDERBILT: That's okay.
CHAIR BAlSA: Thank you very much. Are there any other testifiers, Madam Secretary?
MS. BALALA: No.
CHAIR BAlSA: None. Mr. DeGray Vanderbilt was our last testifier.

.. .END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY. ..
CHAIR BAlSA: Our Chair would like to leave public testimony open in case anyone else would
come along, and I'll close public testimony later on after we've gone through all our
items. Mr. Hunt, anything you'd like to add or, or respond to?
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MR. HUNT: Let me make a few general comments, and then I'll turn it over to Erin Wade to
give you a little more specifics. The, the Countywide Policy Plan is now being reviewed
by the Planning Commissions, and as Mr. Vanderbilt noted it is putting an impact on the
Planning Commissions. They have their normal business to attend to reviewing permit
applications. There's also a number of ordinances that they have been charged to review,
rural zoning standards, the TVR Bill. There, there's several others that are going through
them and then on top of that they have been charged with the policy plan. So there is a
very tight agenda at the Planning Commissions. We, we talked to them about expediting
time, creating more time, and we'll continue to, to try and manage that situation, but it, it
is, it is something that we're going to have to deal with.
In regards to the specifics of the, the plans of where they're at let me turn it over to Erin
Wade, and she can give you a little bit better information.
CHAIR BAlSA: Thank you very much. Erin, thank you for being here today.
MS. WADE: Thank you. Good morning.
CHAIR BAlSA: Good morning.
MS. WADE: We have two plans currently in process. The first is the Countywide Policy Plan,
the overarching policy document. That one has been completed by all three GP ACs and
passed on to the Planning Commissions as DeGray suggested, and they're, they're on
schedule, the Planning Commissions, except for Maui is slightly behind. I think Molokai
is also one goal section behind as well. Lanai is on schedule right now. We will be
going to both the Planning Commissions that are a little bit behind and asking if a special
meeting is acceptable to them to try to get caught up. We would like to keep that plan on
schedule for the first of the year. The Planning Commissions are scheduled to be
complete with their review of that.
The Maui Island Plan is currently in the draft process. We are meeting with the Maui
GP AC right now to do some preparatory work and some information gathering, but the
plan has not been released at this time. We have a November time where we're trying to
be able to distribute the plans, and we're still working towards that goal. Thank you.
CHAIR BAlSA: Okay. Members, questions? Member Johnson.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yes, and because this is kind of a General Plan Update, and I guess
the topic was the socio-economic forecast because this is a communication that came
from both Member Baisa and from Councilmember Michelle Anderson. So you're
giving us just a general update in terms of the timeline, but I think from reading some of
the materials that Mr. Vanderbilt has provided the concern I guess that he raises is that is
the timeline creating a compromise situation in terms of considering, or discussing, or
fleshing out some of the discussions that are going on within the various entities, both
GPAC and the Planning Commissions, because if, if, we're holding a big hammer over
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your head and you have to produce, he's not blaming you, but he's just saying is that a
problem. Because from reading this information it appears that it may be compromising
some of your ability to really, I guess, address all of the concerns that the members are
raising. Could you speak to that point?
CHAIR BAlSA: Director Hunt.
MR. HUNT: I, I think there is a, a time management issue that, that we have to honestly deal
with, and deadlines are a double-edged sword. It imposes a deadline on it, it imposes a
restriction on the amount of time to review, but at the same time it forces you to get
things done expeditiously, and there, there's a balance in there somewhere. We want
thoroughness, but at the same time we need to get this task accomplished. We have a lot
of very critical issues that the island's facing right now that we need to address by having
our General Plan updated.
I don't believe ... my personal opinion is that the review process, once it occurs, is not
being rushed or is not being done in a thorough manner. My, my review of the Maui
Planning Commission, and I've been there for all the policy reviews, is that they're
taking the time that they need. They're doing a thorough job. It's just that there's a lot of
other things that they also need to do. And so they're starting to get behind, but we're
going to try and manage that either by having an extra meeting or more lengthy meetings,
something like that. I don't, I, again my sense is not that there's a, a rush and let's, let's
get this done, and, and they're doing not a good job. I don't, I don't think that's my
sense.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: I think just from, and Mr. Vanderbilt left, because I wanted to ask
him what he meant by, there's a couple of references in this document. So I'll ask him
that privately.
CHAIR BAlSA: Member Johnson, I was hoping to find Mr. Vanderbilt. I had hoped to have
him available for questions, but apparently he had to leave.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yeah.
CHAIR BAlSA: If he comes back, there he is. We'll have him back, and we'll have our
opportunity.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yeah, 'cause I think for me anyway it's really important to kind of
understand that all of the tasks and, of course, sometimes even Molokai I think has
problems with quorum, you know, we, we have problems once in a while even on our
Maui Planning Commission with quorum, too, and I don't know about Lanai. But what
I'm seeing in the text of this is generally that the charge for the Planning Commissions is
twofold and that those constraints both to do their regular work, as well as review this
document on a timely basis and provide the data back, that we're going to be looking at
eventually is, is what's creating the conflict. And so that's where I see some of this
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information. And I, I don't know if, if Mr. Vanderbilt will be available, I would like to
ask him some questions.
CHAIR BAlSA: Mr. Vanderbilt, if you wouldn't mind, we have a question for you and maybe
more. Thank you very much. Member Johnson.
MR. VANDERBILT: Excuse me, Madam Chair, I want to apologize for just walking away, but
we're really frustrated on Molokai and all is not is, is well as Director Hunt says over on
Molokai. And they are rushing us, and we are not able to do a thorough job, and we're
not getting supplied the information we request. So with that ...
CHAIR BAlSA: Mr. Vanderbilt, thank you very much, and let's proceed with getting the
questions out here. Member Johnson. Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: And, and, you know, I sense your frustration DeGray. I think that
sometimes when you have all this heaped on you, and you get paid so well for doing this
it gets a little bit frustrating.
MR. VANDERBILT: Well, it's not, it's not the pay, it's just that our community comes to us,
and we take the heat. Director Hunt, who doesn't come to our policy plan meetings,
doesn't take the heat.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yeah, and, and, and I share that, and I was being facetious when I
said the pay, because I know you do this for, for really nothing. The, the question I had
for you was in regard to the writing. It's on the front part of the communication which is
the e-mail section and it says the Sunshine Laws and GPAC members attending future
Planning Committee or Council meetings as resource people. Now is this a suggestion
that you're making so that when we have updates, or we discuss the General Plan, that we
could request your presence or presence of other people that are participating in this so
that we might have a more thorough discussion and understanding?
MR. VANDERBILT: Well, it was our understanding with Bill 84 that the GPACs would remain
intact and serve as resource for the Council and for our Commission. I know Joe Kalipi,
one of our commissioners, wanted to have as many of the GP AC members come to our
meetings as possible, but we were told by Corp. Counsel that there may be some concern
with the number of GP AC members that come to the meeting and testify, and I think that
just is something that needs to be made clear going forward. I don't know if that subject
has come up with the Maui and Lanai Planning Commissions.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yeah.
CHAIR BAlSA: Member Johnson, could we-VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yes.
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CHAIR BAISA: --have Corp. Counsel respond?
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yeah, if Corp. Counsel can address that, I'd, I'd appreciate hearing.
CHAIR BAISA: Mr. Hopper?
MR. HOPPER: I have some actually updated information on that. We just went to the
Statewide Municipal Attorneys Conference. We had a representative from the OIP there,
and I asked her about this. You see the general issue is that the way they interpret the
Sunshine Law, the issue came up with members of boards and commissions testifying at
other boards and commissions, whether it's Councilor other meetings. And the general
rule of the Sunshine Law is if there are more than two members of a board or a
commission that discuss anything, that's considered a meeting of that board or
commission; and therefore, in order for them to discuss anything it has to be, you have to
have the meeting agenda'd [sic], there has to be public testimony on all the topics they
discuss, and they also have to have a quorum. So you couldn't have a meeting with three
if it was a nine-member committee.
In the case of the GP ACs what's happening was the GP AC members were asking about
showing up in front of the Planning Commission. Now the Planning Commission would
be reviewing the general, the General Plan, and in this case the Countywide Policy Plan.
The issue was whether or not if more than two members of the GP AC showed up at a
Planning Commission meeting whether or not that would be considered a meeting of the
GP AC, because they were, in our interpretation, dealing with board business, and because
the GP ACs were left intact they were, they were not dissolved, they were still a board and
so could still potentially take up board business in the future.
So if more than two of them showed up, in OIP's interpretation, if more than two of them
even showed up, they didn't necessarily have to testify, but if they showed up, that could
be a violation of the Sunshine Law. What I did address with them though is that they
interpret board business as being very narrow, and in this case what they told me when I
gave them the facts of the GP AC meetings was that unless the, unless it seems very clear
that the GPAC actually is going to have another meeting, which they're still at this point
in existence, but they've completed their review of the Countywide Policy Plan. Their
120-day period has lapsed, presumably they're in existence if, you know, III case
someone wanted to refer a question to that body, and they wanted to meet again.
They have told me just last, late last week I was just told that if there's nothing on a
future meeting agenda for the GP AC, or, and it doesn't look like there's anything for, in
the, in the near foreseeable future that the GP AC is going to meet on, then GP AC
members can discuss their what's considered former board business, because they're
technically, don't have any board business before them at the moment. There's no
agenda'd [sic] meetings and there's nothing coming up. So my next step was to get that
word out to the, the GP AC members. There's a Lanai Planning Commission meeting
coming up this Wednesday, and let them know that if they want to, they can actually
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show up and testify unless those GP ACs have something on their agendas that comes up
whether, you know, Planning Commission could refer questions to them for responses,
for example, and if that happens, that becomes their board business and more than two of
them cannot show up.
But, you know, OIP was very clear that if there is board business, that you can't come to
another meeting and more than two of you show up because that's considered a violation
of the Sunshine Law. And in my opinion that's a pretty strict interpretation of, you
know, testimony. If three people show up that don't even testify, they would consider
that potentially a violation. But that was the warning that they, they had to us. Certainly
if, certainly if more than two testified, I think that would be a pretty clear violation as, as
a discussion, but if, if more than two show up we have been advised by OIP, and we
generally do follow their advice, that, that could create a problem. But in this case we
have, we've just been notified that due to the narrow interpretation of board business that
the members of the GP AC could show up at the Planning Commission meetings and
testify or, or answer questions because, you know, under that interpretation the GP ACs
have no more board business.
CHAIR BAlSA: Thank you, Mr. Hopper. Member Johnson?
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Thank you, Madam Chair, and ... (change tape, start 2A) . .. with
regard to Mr. DeGray, DeGray Vanderbilt's comments here then where he says even
being a resource person at a Council meeting as long as it's not agendized on their, I
guess their agenda for GP AC, that would be permissible as well?
CHAIR BAlSA: Mr. Hopper?
MR. HOPPER: For, for the GPAC members, yes. You get into issues if it's, if it's more than
two Planning Commission members. That could potentially be an issue if they're dealing
with their business so ...
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Okay.
MR. HOPPER: But in this, in this case GPAC members wouldn't be subject to that constraint
unless, as I said, something comes up on a GP AC agenda if they're going to have another
meeting, and they haven't had a meeting since they finished their plan review.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Okay. Now with regard to Council Members, because I know that I
have been present at GP AC meetings where there was at least two of us present. So are
you saying that if there were to be GP AC meetings, it's an issue also for Council
Members because at some future point we would be taking up ...
MR. HOPPER: Again, I have to ask OIP if that's considered Council business at this point. I
mean you have it on your agenda right now, so arguably if more than two of you showed
up at a Planning Commission meeting, and you, maybe we can have OIP, you know, give
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an opinion on this but, you know, I can probably, we can probably find other opinions
where they've said similar things, but that's basically the, the issue they've brought up
with us is ... and, and the issue is not so much that you, you can't do it, it's just that it
should be, you should have a quorum of the Council present, and you would have to have
that meeting set as an agenda and held as, as an open meeting.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yeah, and I'm sure that, you know, we'll probably wait as long for
that opinion as we're waiting for the one about our committee attendance.
MR. HOPPER: And that issue did come up, actually, at the meeting. They, they got a request
about that and reiterated, the, the attorney was Jennifer Brooks, was there speaking for
the OIP, and they, someone from Maui, I believe, did ask that question. And, and she
basically reiterated the oral advice that we were given and said that a written opinion is
forthcoming. And I believe said to basically expect the same thing in writing, but it's
certainly been a while since you've had that request. That's a separate issue.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yes, and, and I hope you, you know, gave our condolences to her
broken right hand which resulted in us not getting anything in writing for this length of
time. So, Madam Chair, I have a couple more questions for Mr. Vanderbilt.
CHAIR BAlSA: Would you proceed, please?
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: DeGray, some of the other things that you're addressing in here, and
I don't know if you were out of the room when I asked Planning Department, but it seems
to me that you are saying that your, the Planning Commission itself, that so many things
are being demanded both, I guess of the obligations you have for your regular business as
well as the GP AC considerations. Is, is my reading of this correct, and if you have any
suggestions, what would they be to correct that problem?
MR. VANDERBILT: Well, I was glad to hear about this special meeting that is being planned.
That's the first I've heard about having a special meeting. We want to try to keep to the
schedule. I don't, I don't know what the answer is. I think what we've asked for is for,
to have the minutes of all the GP AC meetings given to us because what has happened ... ,
it will, it will make our job more efficient if we can review those before going into
various sections to see what our GP AC voted in, what was behind it, and how they came
up with a certain policy statement.
We haven't been able to get those although, you know, when this thing comes up to the
Council you'll get all the GPAC meeting minutes, you'll get all the Molokai Planning
Commission meeting minutes, so you can get a better understanding, and we deserve that
same right. If we're reviewing what the GPAC did, we need to have those minutes. But
apparently they were not, some of them were not accepted by the GPAC. Long-Range
Planning's position is they can't be released to the public until the GP AC meets again
and approves those meetings so they're planning another GPAC meeting soon.

- 23 -

PLANNING COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

October 2, 2007

But that would be one way, if we could get those minutes, because what happened is they
have four really good staff people in Long-Range Planning; Erin Wade here and Kathleen
Aoki. They handle the GP ACs, and it was very complex and a lot of policy statements.
Then we lost that institutional knowledge when it came to the Planning Commission
because they assigned two other planners; Simone Bosco, who is a veteran, and a new
girl, Julia Staley. So they don't really remember exactly what happened at the GP AC, we
don't have the minutes. We're finding things that were voted on at the GPAC that
weren't even included in the matrix, the final matrix that went to the Planning
Commission. And those are the kinds of things we want to do.
We want to know that when we send something to this Council, recommendations, we
know what we're talking about. And we understand why the Planning Director's making
certain changes he is because right now we're operating under, under a different set of
rules than the GPACs. We're now working on an implementing action policy in, within
the policy plan which wasn't contemplated with the GP ACs. And I don't think Bill 84
contemplates it. And, and certainly the first draft of the GP AC didn't. The implementing
actions were supposed to be in the island plan and the community plans.
And our worry is that now we're taking, the Director is suggesting certain policy
statements be split up and certain things that he feels are implementing actions go into a
separate implementing section of the policy plan which is new, because it's too restrictive
if it' s in the policy plan, but we, we don't know if we're going to get to review that. And
if the GP ACs had known there was going to be this implementing section within the
policy plan they might have looked at these policy statements differently because the
reason the Director wants to put them in an implementing action in the policy plan, a new
implementing section, is that he thinks the wording's good, but it's, it's sort of all these
policy statements with the how-to' s. You know, protect this by doing this, this, and this,
and by saying this, this, and this the how-to's, that's getting restrictive. It might be
restrictive on the, the Planning Commission, I mean the people that are doing the island
plans and the community plans. But they're taking that same wording and taking it over
verbatim into an implementing action section of the policy plan.
So Bill 84 says that our community plans have to be consistent with the policy plans. So
if that same restrictive language is in an implementing section of the policy plan that's
still going to limit. And I don't know if Planning has thought this through, but I think
that's a, that's a real concern that needs to be, needs to be really explained, and I think
Long-Range is going to try to put together some explanation, because I think that this
two-page document I showed you it start, it started out with ... the first, the very first thing
that came on one policy statement under protect the environment was preserve and
reestablish the wildlife habitat connectivity. And then ... , that was Planning's original.
Then they came back and added by developing island wide networks of greenways, water
course, and habitat courses. That was from the Planning. The Lanai GP AC agreed with
that, thought it was great, so did Molokai, so did Maui. And then the Planning Director
takes that language back out, and it goes back to the original, preserve and reestablish
wild life habitat connectivity.
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So we don't know, we're getting professional advice from the Planning on one end, and
then they're changing it, and then they're going back to the same, and they say because
they're trying to make the plan better. Well, they're the experts, and, and so we're just
trying to understand where they're coming from. We're trying to understand this new
implementing section and that's basically, that's basically it. So ...
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yeah. And, and I thank you, DeGray. I think that, you know, I can
understand your, your concerns, because when I read through both of the documents it
seems here that there is some kind of almost a disconnect, I guess in your view, of what
is, what is the policy and how is it to be uniformly applied. Have you made a, or has the I
guess either the Planning Commission, your Molokai Planning Commission, or you as a
member of GP AC, made any recommendations as to the Planning Department putting
together a matrix, and particularly when they have like, when you take a vote, let's say it
was, I don't know, how, however many members you have, but it was a bare majority
that approved a particular language, and then maybe by one vote there was a difference
and there was a different opinion. Have you asked for some kind of a matrix to be
prepared showing what the nature of the votes are?
MR. VANDERBILT: Well, I think Planning, Long-Range Planning did that. On their matrixes
that went to us we saw the GP AC votes and everything else. And, and, you know, I
think, I think they're doing that for ours. All we're asking for is that we get all the GPAC
minutes as soon as possible, and we're also asking to have, even if it's not in acceptable
form, when the policy plan meets one meeting and, and, that those minutes be available at
the next meeting even if they're in just working draft form so those members that weren't
there can go back and refresh their meeting minutes, and we can have more efficient ... ,
so we're willing to work, but we just need the Planning to work with us. And we have a
Planning staff person on Molokai that's willing to help the GP AC out and to do minutes,
do whatever, and I don't think they've utilized her in any way and that's, and, you know,
they're under staffed, but they got a 13-year veteran Planning staff person on Molokai
that could really be of help if they'd use her.
CHAIR BAISA: Yeah, I, I'd like to say -VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: And ...
CHAIR BAISA: --because I've been following the GP AC process very closely that there's an
awful amount of, incredible amount of work being put on, into this process by the GPAC
members and the volunteers, as well as the Planning Department staff. And everybody's
under a great deal of stress trying to produce a document in a, on a timeline and, of
course, they're short staffed and, you know, there's many issues going on. Every day we
read the paper the Planning Department is dealing with many things besides the General
Plan. And so I really understand that there's frustration and there may be some difficulty
in trying to meet everybody's needs. Planning Department, any comments?
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MR. HUNT: A couple brief items. Regarding the minutes available at the next meeting it's, I've
talked to the division heads, and they believe that the clerical staff is, is doing the
standard job of getting those minutes to the Planning Commissions as soon as they can.
There's a statutory requirement, and we try and abide by that. It's, it's very difficult to
get them available at the next meeting. The next meeting is only generally, sometimes
two weeks apart. So that's, that's a difficult task.
Regarding things being left off the matrix, I believe that it's come to our attention that
one item, one item was left off the matrix out of, there must be pages, and pages, and
pages, and pages. And so to, to color this process as being tainted or inadequate because
of one item I think is unfair.
In terms of the implementing policies, there, there is, there is a matrix that has now been
presented to the Planning Commissions and the implementation policies are merely
policies that because of their specific wording we believe are better as an implementation
policy than as a general guideline policy. They're still part of the plan, but they have not
been deleted from the plan whatsoever. It's just a matter of the hierarchy. You have a
goal, you have an objective, you have a policy, and then if it's really specific it would be
better as an implementation policy. And Erin Wade can talk to that a little bit more. The,
the same process that DeGray appears to be so upset about is going through the Maui
Planning Commission, and we're not hearing this. So, again, you know, I understand
DeGray has some concerns, but I think the Council needs to be aware that these concerns
are not across the board. And let me have Erin Wade talk about the implementation
policies a little bit.
CHAIR BAlSA: Erin
MS. WADE: Thank you.
CHAIR BAlSA: Thank you. Thank you, Jeff.
MS. WADE: Thank you, Jeff, too for letting me talk about this. I kind of got Jeff into this
implementation conundrum. As we began reviewing the recommendations from all three
of the GPACs, Mr. Vanderbilt's absolutely correct. Originally, our Director's submission
had only a single page implementation chapter. And as we began reviewing what the
GP AC had given us in terms of their comments we realized a lot of their suggestions
were actually implementing actions. They were also suggesting that one of their greatest
concerns throughout the planning process is not getting to the implementation stage. It's
developing all of these goals, and then never reaching a point where you're implementing
programs or you're developing tools by which the goals can be achieved.
So what we did was we sorted through everything that the GP AC gave us and some of
our initial draft comments, and we tried to identify which ones would actually define how
we would accomplish a lot of these goals. So many of those were filtered through, and
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they're also going as he said through the Planning Commission for their review, but what
we would like to do is separate those and put them in the implementation chapter.
And DeGray's question about will then the, the community plans be subject to those
implementing actions as well. The policies section of the plan will be the goals,
objectives, and policy chapter. And then the implementation is going to be kind of a
guideline or recommendations for ways in which to implement those goals, objectives,
and policies. But the thing that the Planning Commissions and the Planning staff will be
reviewing their plans by, will be Chapter 4, the goals, objectives and policies.
And only, the only other thing I'd like to comment on was Mr. Vanderbilt asked why did
we change our initial draft after hearing from the General Plan Advisory Committees.
And I'd, you know, just like to say that their comments were incredibly beneficial.
They're outside perspective was really helpful, and you know, we did I think a really
good job with our first effort of the draft, but from the richness, the comments we got,
people really spoke from the heart when we talked to them, and it was, it was just, it
created a much better draft by incorporating what they were able to provide us.
CHAIR BAlSA: Thank you very much, Erin. Are there any further questions for the testifier?
Member Hokama, did you have a question?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: My question was that, and I'm trying to find it in the
documentation, this part of the concerns that Mr. Vanderbilt brings up from Molokai
based on the fact that Molokai-Lanai's General Plan participation also includes that what
covers Molokai is under the Molokai Community Plan, and that is why I can understand
some of the more specific recommendations that either the, that island's GP AC or
Planning Commissioners may have, because part of their General Plan participation is to
also include Molokai's areas of concern and recommendations, but they are to be viewed
within their community plan. So is that part of the problem, or, or misconception, or
misunderstanding of how their role is to be?
CHAIR BAlSA: Director Hunt?
MR. HUNT: I, I'm not sure if that's part of the perception problem. The community plans for
Molokai and Lanai are scheduled for winter/spring of, of '08.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Yeah, but they're viewed as island plans nonetheless;
island-wide plans; right? When they're supposed to fit to the overall county, County's
General Plan. Okay.
MR. HUNT: There ...
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: That was our issue of, let me just say it, of great discussion,
because we had differences on the Council regarding this because we have gone through
this, you know, compared to the Big Island, since you guys were on the Big Island, who
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has no community plan yet, we're going through our third process already. Okay. This
is the third time we're going through this. We've already known what we did the first
time, we improved it for the second time, and we still had areas of, of improvement, and
that's how we got to 2.80B.
But my main contention has always been GP AC goes to you first, Mr. Hunt; right? You
take their recommendations, then you decide what to send to Planning Commission; isn't
that correct?
MR. HUNT: That's how we see it, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Yeah, and that was part of the issue in the second round,
because the Planning Department and the Director changed what the advisory committees
worked hard on, and then the Commission comes up with theirs. So what Council gets in
the end is three plans. We get the original advisory, we get the Director's, then we get
the Commission, Planning Commissions. Okay. And that was to me always the
problem. We should have had only one come through the process, and they can give us
their comments, but not give us three independent plans. And then people wonder why
do we take so long to make the decision, right? Because part ofMr. Vanderbilt's concern
is timing, but what was the biggest bitch of the community in the second round. It took
too damn long -CHAIR BAlSA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: --to get Council approval. Okay. For Lanai, after GPAC
advisory finished, it took five years for Council to approve that community plan and that
was the bitch, you're taking too long. You know, so, so that was my, my concern, and I
don't know if Mr. Vanderbilt, do you see my, my, my, my point about the possible issue
of the General Plan participate Molokai, but Molokai is also to view their component in
the overall General Plan as part of your own community plan? And if it's not, then just
let me know that. .. {inaudible} . ..
MR. VANDERBILT: No. No. That, that, that is why we're very adamant about understanding
where the Planning Director's coming from when he changes our GPAC. We have a
tremendous GP AC. It's very well respected, the members in our community. It was
commissioner, Planning Commissioner Joe Kalipi that brought it up that they just want to
accept everything the GP AC did, and, and that would be our recommendation.
The Planning Director did make what we feel were some good things. I think the GP AC
would agree. But the thing that bothered us the most was this whole implementing action
because Bill 84 says that the General Plan and the community plan shall be internally
consistent in their implementing actions. So all of a sudden the Director is creating this
implementing action within the policy plan which our GP AC really wasn't aware of, or
they might have looked at the policies different. And that's causing us some, some real
concern. And I don't think there's any need to do that, because what he's, what's he's
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doing, he's, he's saying look at, and I think Erin alluded to this, the input from the
GPACs was good. We don't want to lose that so we're going to put it in an
implementing action because it's too restrictive to have in the policy statement. But
they're moving it to the implementing action in its restrictive form, and, and then you
look at Bill 84, and it says the implementing actions of the community plan need to be
consistent with the implementing actions in the policy plan.
But on page five of that one handout I gave you it talks about that the policy plan is not
going to be, have an implementing section. It says the implementing programs necessary
to achieve this policy plan will be identified in the next steps of the General Plan Update
process. There was no, there was no, the GP AC, and I was on the GP AC, we never were
said that there'd be this implementing action. You better view these policy statements in
such a way that, you know, you might have to deal with this thing. So that's my concern
that we're working on a little bit different set of rules, and it's just making it a very
complex document to send up to the Council. We want to, we want to make sure we
understand what we're doing and that's some of our frustration. If it's only coming from
the Molokai Planning Commission ...
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Mr. Vanderbilt, let me ask you this question then. Do you
think in your participation and your understanding of what has already transpired that,
and again, you know, one of the, the consistent things about Molokai is you folks are
very specific in, in, regarding certain components of the planning documents, and I
consider that good because we don't have to guess what you folks thought. We know
what you guys thought, were thinking. But, you know, for me, and I go back again to
what we understood, and again for me this is my third go around with the community
plan update, the General Plan for people like me is basic core principals that can cover
any part of the County, and that the community plans come in with the specific points of
how to achieve that overarching general agreement we have, or direction the County
wants to go.
So is, is there some, in your perspective, at this point in time of the planning update that
Molokai really wants to get more specific as, and that they would more, maybe more
appropriately relate to the community plan document specifically than the General Plan
overarching goals? Because that's what my understanding is we're asking the GPACs
for on the General Plan, Mr. Director, the overarching, what the County can agree on as
the general planning goals we want to achieve.
CHAIR BAlSA: Mr. Hunt, response?
MR. HUNT: I agree with Mr. Hokama's interpretation is that the countywide policy plan should
apply to all three islands and if there's specific policies that Molokai or Lanai believe are
pertinent to, to just those islands, then those would come up in, in their community plans
which are their island plans.
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COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you for the comment. Mr. Vanderbilt, you
know, your, your perspective...
MR. VANDERBILT: Well, no, we, we, we agree that there, there shouldn't be any specific
policy plans that are specific to one island or another. But what the, some of our other
planning commissioners, and when we get the minutes this can be verified in the minutes,
they're concerned by the Director just taking out words and putting them in this new
implementing section. It's going to cause problems. It might take away some of the, the
meaning. And to make it not restrictive what I did was run through all of those ones that
the Director changed, and made this restrictive wording more or less suggested
alternatives.
For instance, where it says preserve and reestablish wildlife habitat connectIvIty by
developing connectivity. That's, that was the, it says preserve and reestablish wildlife
habitat connectivity by developing island-wide networks such as greenways, water
course, and habitat courses. We added the "such as" in there rather than just taking those
suggested alternatives out which would not make it restrictive but would stimulate some
ideas rather than creating this new implementing section that we feel may cause a
problem, because it says in Bill 84 that the General Plan and community plan
implementing actions have to be internally consistent, and we don't quite understand
what that means. And that's all we want to do. We want to understand where the
Director's coming from so that we can feel comfortable supporting what our plan ...
GP AC did in sending something up that's worthwhile and concise to the Council for
consideration.
CHAIR BAlSA: You know, I've, like I said sat through many of the GP AC meetings and
there's always a discussion because it's a tendency by the members to want to add more
to the policy plan and to try to get into the implementation, or the limitations, or the howto's, or whatever, and I think the discipline on Maui has been very strict about saying
we're going to deal with that in the island plan. So, and I've seen it, you know, carried
through. So I'm glad we're having this discussion today. It was very important that we
talk about what we're observing, and what we're seeing, and that we try to understand
each other because, Mr. Vanderbilt, we all I think have the same goal. And I certainly
do, that when we get the final products from the Planning Department that come to
Council that we will have something that we can work with fairly quickly and not have to
spend a whole lot of time trying to sort out who said what and what it means, because
then we will get into the situation that Mr. Hokama mentions where we take too much
time, and then the public is upset with us. And I know that everyone is anxiously
awaiting the products. I certainly am. As a Council Member, I would love to have a
current updated General Plan, and island plan, and community plan that, you know, could
really guide us in some of the big decisions that we're trying to make.
So, you know, this is very important. And we had the General Plan and the Planning
Department folks come and report to us earlier this year, and we brought them back again
because we felt it was time for a, another look at what's going on and to talk about the
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issues, and I'm sure that whatever goes on here today is for the benefit of us trying to
have a better product. And I know that everybody's listening and wanting to do it right,
and I certainly appreciate, you know, you taking the time to come and present what, what
you presented today. You know, it takes time, it takes courage, and I really appreciate
your commitment.
MR. VANDERBILT: Madam Chair, could I just say one thing?
CHAIR BAlSA: Surely.
MR. VANDERBILT: Long-Range Planning made a sincere attempt during the GPAC process to
get the chair's of the Lanai GP AC, Molokai GP AC, and Maui GP AC together to maybe
do some editing where they could present one document that was agreeable by all. For
whatever reason that didn't happen. And maybe along the lines that Chairman Hokama
was talking about, there could be some type of process like that with the Planning
Commissions to try to get some consensus on one document to send to the Council rather
than, I mean we've got, we got a book this thick with not only the current matrixes, but
matrixes from the past, and most of the Molokai Planning Commissioners were just,
wow, what do we do with, with all this. But that might be an alternative to try to make
something more concise so that it doesn't create a hornet's nest when it gets up here to
the Council.
CHAIR BAlSA: When you have time, I'll open the trunk of my car. It is filled with GPAC
papers from the very beginning. And so I'm sure everyone who is involved is dealing
with a similar amount of documents. Members, any more questions for our testifier?
Otherwise, I would like to thank Mr. Vanderbilt for coming -MR. VANDERBILT: Thank you.
CHAIR BAlSA: --and excuse you. Thank you very much. What I'd like to do now, guys, is I'd
like to call a short recess. The Members have been very patient. We've been here since
9:00. Can we take a... (change tape, start 2B) . .. 10-minute recess and come back at five
minutes to 11 :00, and we'll try to conclude our business by noon. Thank you very much.
The meeting is now in recess. .., (gavel) . ..
RECESS:

10:43 a.m.

RECONVENE:

10:57 a.m.

CHAIR BAlSA: .. , (gavel). .. The meeting of the Planning Committee is called back to order.
When we took our break, Members, we had just completed questioning our testifier on
PC-2 which was our General Plan Update. Are there any further questions or comments
on this issue? Member Johnson?
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VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yes, I, I had an opportunity during the break to visit with Member
Anderson who, you know, obviously with all her planning background, I think one of the
points she made to me was very important. And that is that when the Planning
Department looks at the criteria of any application for land use change that comes
forward, what they're doing is they're looking at the consistency with the community
plan. And so the wording that is stated both in the community plan, the General Plan,
and the consistency it's not going to look at the implementing action, but if the verbiage
with regard to that implementing action is contained within the policy or the community
plan ordinance itself, that is where I think that will give tremendous guidance to the
Planning Department and to the Council when we review land use applications.
So I think that was a very good perspective to look at because as clear as we can be, and
as clear as we're able to give direction to the Planning Department when we adopt
policies, I think that that helps them to be able to do a more consistent job, it's not subject
to interpretation, and you take away a lot of that guesswork. So I did very much
appreciate her comments. Thank you.
CHAIR BAISA: Thank you very much. Members, any other comments?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Question.
CHAIR BAISA: Member ... Chair Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Does the Department have anything for this Committee to
review regarding any updates in the socio-economic component that we've listed for
today's meeting, or what we currently have is what the commissions and the advisory
committee had?
CHAIR BAISA: Member. .. Mr. Hunt?
MR. HUNT: The, we have no updates from the last presentation that we gave you. I believe it
was June 2006, the report.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Uh-huh. And I think I made some specific comments on
population forecast at the previous meeting, and the ... Chair, thank you for confirming
that I did.
CHAIR BAISA: I remember that.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: So I'm just wondering has the Department shared with either
the advisory committee or with the current Planning Commissions additional comments
regarding population forecast, Mr. Hunt, please?
MR. HUNT: We shared the comments that came out of the last presentation. As we understood
them there was concerns that there be policies that focus, or at least address the residents
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and the population increase and projections of residents versus population increase of
non-residents and the housing that would result for both non-residents and residents, and
we've made it clear that that was a concern that was expressed here, and that there should
be policies in the plan to address that and there have been plans inserted. And the
Planning Department, I believe, has even made sure that if there wasn't a GP AC
recommendation, that we've inserted some language to try and address that.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Anything you can share at this time or would you prefer to
wait till the, the official document comes to us?
MR. HUNT: I don't have the language off the top of my head, and it, it is a policy plan so it's
fairly broad, general language. I think as we keep going down the road and particularly
with the island plan it will get more narrowed.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. And I just bring that up, Mr. Hunt, for you and your
planners because, you know, I, I view things a little differently from others, obviously,
and the Chair's -CHAIR BAlSA: I'm strange. .., (laughter) . ..
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: --laughter was, thank you very much for that comment. I can
appreciate it, especially when it comes to the issue or topic of planning because all our
forefathers did the best with what they had at that specific point in time. And they made
a lot of what I consider right decisions. I think where we come up with the, the
perception of our new residents that we didn't plan is our unanticipated success and the
velocity that we have achieved certain goals compared to what was the plan dates and
times. Okay. So, like, if you look at the forecast at 2000 we're looking only at about 85,
90,000 people. Okay. That was the forecast. Okay.
And so we made plans of how to achieve that. What was not anticipated was the success
of those decisions and the success of the development community and other components
of our economy that have accelerated so much that at 2000 instead of 85, 90, we had 130,
140,000 people. Okay. So, of course, many things fell behind; the infrastructure and
other concerns that you hear about every day as the Planning Director. But it wasn't
because we didn't plan. We miscalculated the success or the, the ability to achieve
within specific times, and again, because we don't have control of many things including
investor dollars and timing of not the U.S. economy, but the global economy. I bring that
up because part of what I look forward in your revised forecast as part of the updating the
General Plan language is to state the achieved goals, but to take into account the two
factors. If the acceleration point is increased, certain things must be considered. If we
decrease and we are going below those projections, then what should we be considering
as general planning adjustments? But to just say we had no planning or bad planning, I
don't think that would be fair to those decision makers of the past.
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And for me, because I've been, like I said this is my third round I take it personally, okay,
because we did the best with what we were given as far as factual data and trends to base
our decisions on. Okay. Obviously, we didn't expect the real estate component to be that
successful and to accelerate so fast that it went beyond our projections. So now that's
what we're dealing with. Well, what are we going to say? Well, those that came from
91,000 after, sorry you got to wait until we get room for you. They're already here,
Madam Chair, whether we like it or not. So I just bring up that point that I think, I would
ask the Department to view that, that whatever we project we should take into account
also accelerated achievement or delayed achievement of certain goals and objections,
Madam Chair. Thank you.
CHAIR BAlSA: Thank you, Mr. Hokama. The institutional knowledge is always so valuable,
and you have a wonderful memory. I remember you asking the question, but I didn't
remember to ask about it. And those population projections are very, very important
because, you know, we are kind of the victims of our success at this time and hopefully
we can do better in the future. And this is why I am so concerned about the General Plan,
and I really want to make sure that it's a valuable process this time and that we really
have good information in it. And I see that happening. I see a tremendous amount of
dedication, and we will continue, of course, to monitor as this thing goes along, and we'll
be inviting the Planning Department back to talk with us as it goes along.
And also Planning Department, you know, at your initiation we'd love to have you back
too. You don't have to wait to be invited. If something's coming up that you feel that
this Committee should be aware of and that we should discuss as it's happening, please
feel free to let me know because then we'll schedule you to come back and talk to us.
Because I think it's important, you know, we, we have to work together. Okay.
Members, any more questions on this PC-2? Otherwise, the Chair would like to defer the
item with no objections and move on to our next item.
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
ACTION:

DEFER PENDING FURTHER DISCUSSION.

CHAIR BAlSA: Thank you very much. This has been a very good discussion, and I'd like to
thank the Planning Department, the testifier, and the Members for the great input.
ITEM NO. 23:

MAUl ISLAND INFRASTRUCTURE STUDY (c.e. No. 07-257)

CHAIR BAlSA: Our third item today is about the proposed Maui Island Infrastructure Study.
This item was recently generated by Councilmember Danny A. Mateo of Molokai.
Mister ... Councilmember Mateo is not a Member of the Committee, otherwise, I'm sure
he would be here today to present this issue. He's very interested and concerned about it
and so are all of us. Councilmember Mateo contends that the County's decision makers
don't possess sufficient data about basic infrastructure capacity and future needs
particularly in the important fields of water supply, wastewater, and transportation.
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We have invited several departments to provide their comments today in response to
Councilmember Mateo's communication. Before we get into our deliberations we will
accept public testimony on this item if there is any.
MS. BALALA: No.
CHAIR BAISA: No one has signed up to testify on this issue. And so, again, we will just leave
public testimony open until we get to our last item. Administration representatives, I
guess we'll start with Director Hunt.
MR. HUNT: Thank you, Chair. The Planning Department, as a basis of the General Plan
Update, has been conducting infrastructure study, and we agree with Councilmember
Mateo's concern or beliefs that information regarding infrastructure is important to this
planning process and important to the County. The, there was a draft that was presented
to us and the Planning Staff has reviewed that draft, and I believe has submitted
comments, and we're waiting for a redraft. And I will, with that I'll turn it over to
Kathleen Aoki who has been the Staff Planner in charge of that study.
CHAIR BAISA: Ms. Aoki, please.
MS. AOKI: Good morning, Members. I guess what I'd like to do is just for your information go
over what studies the Department does have for those of you who are new or may not
realize that we have a lot of the, the infrastructure studies that Councilmember Mateo is
talking about.
Back in May of 2003, the Department finalized the County of Maui infrastructure
assessment update which includes the water, wastewater, drainage, parking, and electrical
systems for the County. Also as part of, this was all done as part of the General Plan
Update. In July of 2002, we concluded the public facilities assessment update which
includes public facilities like fire, police, schools, libraries, and recreation, parks, parks
and recreation. So that's this one. We also just recently as part of Bill 84 one of the
requirements was to do a telecommunications assessment which we just completed in
April of this year. We also, as part of the General Plan, we were required to do, forecast
out to 2030. A lot of these studies only went out to 2020. So we contracted R. M. Towill
to do an update of the public facilities report which goes out to 2030. So this was
completed in March of this year. Then as for water and wastewater, what we did was an
assessment to 2030 based on numbers we received from both the Wastewater Division
and the Water Department, and did our own sort of executive summary in-house.
So we have a lot of information available to you, and we also as part of the, the General
Plan Update had to do the land use forecast, a socio-economic forecast which we just
discussed. Thank you.
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CHAIR BAISA: Thank you very much. Would you like me now to call maybe the various
department directors that are here so that they could share, Chair Hokama?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Madam Chair, I was wondering if you would allow the
Committee Members if they have any questions for just what Ms. Aoki shared with, and
Director Hunt, a few questions, please?
CHAIR BAISA: Surely. Go right ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Ms. Aoki, thank you for giving us the dates of the various
studies and, and the updates and summaries that the Department has been able to conduct.
So can this Committee assume correctly that when we get a land use application, for
example, of project one. We'll just make, make up a project, that in the Department's
recommendations, as well as points for conditions of approval for zoning and what not,
that it has been reviewed and tied back to the studies that you have just shared with us?
MS. AOKI: The current Planning Department, Chair, does, you know, they do have these
reports, but from the way I understand the process works they send out to the specific
agency's for comment. So the agencies have these reports, but they also have their own
internal reports that they use and plans, et cetera. So the Department relies on the
agency's comments for their suggestions, or recommendations. That's not to say they're
not going to use this, but I believe they rely more heavily on the ... because these reports
are great in that they give you a snapshot of where we are or were at that time, right. But
as you know things change, pumps break, reservoirs get built. So that's why we rely
heavily on the agency's comments for the most recent updates, or you know, what, what
their current situation is.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: I just asked that question, Ms. Aoki and Director Hunt,
basically because I have seen some Departments when an application comes forward
goes, oh, if we put in for our request in this application, I don't have to face Council and
Budget Committee later for a separate budget request. I can maybe have my project
included in this development and while that may be a short term advantage it does
eventually, you know, possibly throw everything else off because then we go back to
community plan consistency. Even like, well, they said they needed another fire station,
for example, but the Council already said, no, we're going to place it in this development
over here so we don't need the one we had originally agreed to in the community plan,
and then we continually deal with plan amendments because it keeps changing all the
time. And while I understand the need for some fluidity and flexibility to address
specific issues that may come up that we have not anticipated, again, with all respect to
our Chair and, and my Committee Members, the planning is exactly that. We just using
it as a guideline, and it's not going to be something that we're going to adhere to, dotting
I's, and crossing T's, but we are just to view this then as our guidance, but not necessarily
to follow. Any comments to that?
CHAIR BAISA: Planning Department.
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COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: If you're not ready, Director Hunt, and I know it's a tough
question so, you know, if you prefer to defer I can appreciate that if you want to think
about a response.
MR. HUNT: I, I think I would just simply repeat what you said is these documents are intended
to provide us guidance and to help us make decisions, but at the same time they're,
they're not etched in granite, and due to circumstances changing or specifics changing,
there has to be some flexibility so that there's a balance or attention there.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Because I think Mr. Mateo in his cover letter to us stating,
you know, his, why he's asking for this infrastructure study is absolutely right, and we're
currently facing it in Mr. Molina's Committee. You know, we have applications before
us. You know, each one believes they should have first priority of the Committee's
attention and yet, you know, we're dealing with, with issues that are coming to be of
higher priority, and you know, I see Mr. Yamashige from Water Department. Of course,
we all know without water nothing can happen. So I'm just going back again, how are
we to view this updates, and how has the Departments utilized it to assist Council to
make the best decisions possible?
MR. HUNT: We rely on, on the Departments a lot in terms of the infrastructure. We're not the
experts on water, or wastewater, or transportation. If, if they propose a need or foresee a
need for a particular station or facility, a fire station, for example, and they put it in a, in a
plan, but in, then in the future they, they find a better location would be better, it, it's hard
for us to argue against that. On a private development side, as Kathleen stated, we rely
almost exclusively on the Departments themselves to respond to infrastructure needs and,
and capacities, and adequacy of services. It, it's, it's hard for the planners to question, for
example, the Water Department regarding water. It's their kuleana. They're, they're
supposedly the experts on that and not us.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: And I can tell you that in, you know, I think Water
Department has made great strides, you know, over the last few years, but I can tell you
from previous directors of years ago, the standard coming from water was no objections
or no comments on this project because we'll make that call when they come in and
request water meter depending upon availability, you know. But yet the applicant is
moving forward and investing big money on the assumption he's going to get the water.
And we should have told them upfront we don't have water. Until the County either
builds or someone provides "X" amount of more water we don't recommend approval.
And then we know exactly what we need to do. Give Water Department more money for
source development and transmission, or enter into agreements for the private sector to
build a well for us and either get reimbursed or have us get the appropriate amount of, of
water that's being developed by the private sector. Then we can say we can take up the
applications. Thank you, Chair.
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CHAIR BAISA: Thank you, Mr. Hokama. I have a question for the Planning Department. We
mentioned that we have many studies that are happening for the General Plan and, you
know, we've done water, and we've done public facilities, and socio-economic, and all of
these things. Do you feeL .. I think it's important for us to get, kind of get a pulse here,
that maybe additional, or deeper, or more work is needed so that we'd have a better
comfort level? I'm wondering if that's where Member Mateo is, that he'd maybe like to
see something more intense. And if you feel that what we have and what we're doing for
the General Plan is adequate.
MS. AOKI: Chair, if I may? I've been working on the infrastructure portion of this for years,
and what I found is these reports are good. They're good, but talking directly to the
agencies is what I primarily rely on. And so I know a lot of the agencies themselves do
their own internal plans and updates. Wastewater, they're required to, you know. So
also with, I believe the Solid Waste Division is looking into doing a, a, you know, a plan
to look over the next 20 years. So a lot of what Councilmember Mateo's concerns are I
truly believe the agencies themselves can address what it is he's looking for because I've
been able to do that for the General Plan Update.
CHAIR BAISA: Thank you very much for that answer. Members, any questions? Otherwise,
I'd like to kind of address that question to the Directors that are here and have been
patiently sitting all morning. Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah, thank you, Madam Chair. Just to follow-up to
Ms. Aoki's comments. So my question would be so as I interpret what Member Mateo
wants is an infrastructure surveyor study. How would you ... well, first of all, are you
saying then basically we don't, you wouldn't recommend having this study, because we
already have the information available from the agencies rather than ask for a separate
study to incorporate all of what you have already found? I'm just trying to think of a way
if we do come up with a separate study, how would you incorporate or recommend to us
how this study is developed?
MS. AOKI: Thank you for that question. I, my personal opinion is that we don't need another
study. Just for your references, Director Hunt stated earlier, just to do the infrastructure
study was almost $150,000 and that was four years ago. The public facilities study was
125,000 and that was back in 2002. Two years ago we contacted the consultant for the
infrastructure assessment to see what it would cost to just update the wastewater and
water sections to 2030 projections. Just for those two sections they wanted $40,000,
which we didn't have in our budget, and that's why I ended up doing it in-house by just
going and talking. It's amazing what these agencies know - they should know. They
were very helpful. I got everything I needed for just my time not $40,000. So I can't
imagine the cost of doing another ... I'm not saying it shouldn't be done. I just don't think
it's necessary three years later to go out and do that, especially when the agencies are, are
doing it in-house now anyway, you know.
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I guess it would depend on if you wanted specific, just certain facilities looked at. You
know, obviously the cost ... , like with drainage and parking and all that, I mean that's
great to have, but if, if it's your critical infrastructure that you're looking at then maybe
you could just do another study on that. I just don't think at this point it's necessary. I
really don't.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: What about our carrying capacity type of study?
MS. AOKI: Carrying capacity gets to be tricky because one has to define carrying capacity and
that can be subjective. So I don't know how, that would be something that the Council
would have to sort of decide what it is that the community is willing to accept or not
accept and go from there.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Madam Chair.
CHAIR BAlSA: Thank you, Member Molina. Good questions. Member Johnson.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: I had an opportunity to visit with Member Mateo about this very
subject, and I think our discussion it went back to, in fact, a document that I had sent to I
think it was Wayne Nishiki even before I became a Member of the Council. And what I
called it was a resource and needs assessment. And that, I think, in addition to the
capacity that Member Mateo mentions in his letter to the Councilor to this Committee,
one of the things I think is problematic, and in my conversation with him I think he
shares that same view is that when we're looking at the available resources here on the
island that we have, whether even human resources are to be considered.
All of our studies to date you can put them all together and some of the information may
be outdated, some of it may be accurate, but one of the shortfalls that we see is when we
implement or when we do public infrastructure you can build something, but who in the
heck are you going to staff it with? And of the people here on the island how much labor
do we want to import? How many people are available to operate, whether it's police,
fire, engineers, water department operators, water officials that have the background that,
let's say Mr. Eng has, where are we going to get the people to do all these things?
So those are limiting factors that really we should as a Council when we're making land
use decisions. If we're even approached for something in CIP, how do we know if we
can even consider building it or consider funding it if we don't have the personnel to staff
it? And that I think is one of the things that ... you can look at all the studies you want to,
but in the real world how are we going to get from where we are now to where we want
to go, and is it doable, and is it realistic? And if we can't do it, because we're limited,
because we live on a island, then I think that's what the Council needs to know and
everything should be measured against what is our workforce that we have, what is the
available water, what is the sewage capacity, how many fire stations do we need, what
are the number of acres needed for parks.

- 39 -

PLANNING COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

October 2, 2007

So all those things I think they may be contained in some form, but I've never seen it
consolidated in one place where we as the Council could say, well, all right, we're at
30 percent of I guess whatever our capacity would be for personnel to serve all of the
needs for our police department, or we're at 60 percent of where we should be with
providing park space for the number of individuals we have here. And that, I think, is
where Member Mateo is going, 'cause that's certainly where I'm going. And if you look
it as a measurement, at least make an educated guess, or when we get something, have
the Departments look at it, and give their best educated guess when we're analyzing,
because if we don't know where we are now, and remember those little signs that say,
"you are here"? We don't even have that. So if you want to know where you want to get
to, and you're here now, then something in between is what we've got to aim for, and
even timelines. So that's my frustration, and I've had it since before I got on the Council.
I still have it, and I don't know if you guys can answer the questions or even if the other
Department heads can, but that's the approach that I think Member Mateo .. . (change
tape, start 3A). . .is striving for. What is the barometer? Where are we on this little
voyage of where we are now and where we want to get to in the implementing actions of
the community plan, and are we able to get where we think we should be? So, that's my
two cents, Madam Chair.
CHAIR BAlSA: Thank you, Member Johnson. What I'd like to do, if it's okay, I'd like to call
the various Department Directors down and have them give us a few comments on how
they feel about their progress, or their status with infrastructure studies and forecasting.
And get their take on do they feel that, you know, what they're doing is adequate, or what
they have planned is adequate, or do we need something else. So why don't we start
with, ladies first, Cheryl, if you could please?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Sorry, guys, there's no seniority.
CHAIR BAlSA: This is what happens when you have a lady Chair. Thank you very much for
patiently waiting with us this morning, and we have the, our new Director of our new
Department of Environmental Management, and there's another part of it that I never
remember. Cheryl Okuma?
MS. OKUMA: Thank you, good morning. I just want to say that as Ms. Aoki had pointed out,
you know, within wastewater we do have a lot of regulatory requirements which basically
amounts to keeping track and collecting, collection of data, and one of them would be
flow requirements and such things. And one thing for folks to be aware of is that there is
a regulatory requirement that whenever our facilities look like they're reaching, if the
average dry weather flow ofa facility is reaching 75 percent of that facility's design flow,
then it triggers the necessity to have to do a facilities plan, which is sort of like a general
blueprint and analysis where you look at, well, what else is needed in terms of the facility
upgrades, expansions, you know, pump, pump station work that may need to be done.
And from there you would then go into your preliminary engineering reports, your
planning, your design, and ultimately, your construction.
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So in terms of the question, does it look like we're on track as far as the plans are
concerned? You know, from what I've seen it appears to be so. And so if we follow this
general rule, there is one facility which has in fact reached that 75 percent, and that would
be the Kaunakakai facility on Molokai. So we're in fact embarking on that facility's
plan.
CHAIR BAISA: Thank you very much. Members, questions? Member Johnson.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Miss ... , say your last name again?
MS. OKUMA: Okuma.
CHAIR BAISA: Okuma.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Okuma. Thank you. I'll get used to it.
MS. OKUMA: Okay.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: I really appreciate your comments, and you have clear criteria as to
when this study is requested. If I just as a, you know, outside lay person look at what
you're doing I look at it as more, okay, you've reach this point, and then you get into
reaction mode. If this trigger is achieved, then we go into reactive mode. When your,
let's say planning of public facilities takes place, do you ever get in front of the curve in
anticipation that certain thresholds will be attained at certain points, and then get into
advance proactive, more advanced planning, so that you know, and you can kind of
anticipate what the needs will be?
MS. OKUMA: Thank you for bringing that up. In fact, we are in advanced planning, so it's not,
it's not a reaction where we're taken by surprise by it, because we're, we're actually
keeping real time actual information. So we keep track of what the real time actual flows
are and as we, as we keep track of that we will know by year between 2010 and 2015
we've got to really look at whether we're going to reach this 75 percent capacity.
So, for example, if you look at these planning documents, if we just talk about the
Molokai facility, we know from the planning that was done that between the years 2005
and 2010 we needed to look at whether we're going to reach the 75 percent design
capacity. So we actually knew back in 2003, or, or maybe before that that within this
period of time we were somewhere in that order of five years going to reach this, and in
fact that is what happened. So we're not in exactly a reactionary mode where we're
caught by surprise. We in fact do know, and are planning, and we've got our 20 year
plan into the future. We know what our past data is, we know where we are currently,
and we're always looking at what the situation is.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yeah, I appreciate that, and I, I'm not going to hold you accountable
for past information that we've received in, in let's say past administrations, because I
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think one of our frustrations, at least in Lahaina side, is that, you know, we're kept being
told, and the comments that were made on land use changes, no problem, no problem, no
comment, we have capacity. And then all of a sudden, you know, this giant $20 million
figure seems to hit us right between the eyes that, oh, well, we don't have capacity, and
we're overcommitted in terms of the number of people that have actually reserved
capacity. So I, I don't want to see us, Madam Chair, get into that situation which seems
to also be one of the issues that Member Mateo's addressing. So I hope that in the future
we can have a little bit different approach and particularly of concern is our wastewater
plant in, in Lahaina. Thank you.
CHAIR BAlSA: Chair Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA. Thank you, Madam Chair. Director Okuma, I am not aware
if you had an opportunity to see Mr. Cannon's testimony for today's meeting, and he
spoke about particularly one of your divisions which is wastewater, and I believe his
comment ... , I'm sorry I don't know where I put it. Oh, okay, it's in the binder. As part
of the Maui GP AC areas of concern was the relocation of the Kahului Sewage Treatment
Plant. And, and I bring that up, and I, and I can concur with you that your division pretty
much has been doing what it's required and, and that upon the triggers you do advanced
planning as best as possible. Again, and I know that you are depending on Council
funding to do certain requirements also.
But getting back to planning and this study or this idea of an infrastructure study what I
want to bring up is it interests me when the division does not object to private developers
doing their own systems because for me, you know, as a appropriator of public funds we
in anticipation and plan create that extra capacity for future developments. And we are
aware that under the Federal law the users pay for the system; and therefore, we are
anticipating down the road additional homes and other uses, legal uses to connect to the
County system so we can continually spread out the costs further by increasing users.
And for me looking at the Kahului Sewage Treatment Plant relocation in my rough
calculation we are looking at about a quarter billion dollar investment. And for that, for
you to only rely on your sewage fund or wastewater fund I think we're going to need
some general fund support, which means it comes from the total tax base of the whole
County. And to one of the ways for me to help justify that consideration is that knowing
our Departments are going to make it a point that if there's a new development on, it will
connect to our system to help us defray the cost of the improvements in creating that
required capacity cushion that you have earlier expressed to us.
So any comment to that? Because your planning will get off key if you coming to us at
Budget and saying we are looking at a multiple tier increase in sewer fees to pay for
certain things, but it's not going to happen on the side of the user increase because we're
going to allow the private side do their own systems.
MS. OKUMA: Yes, thank you, Council Chair Hokama. You know, I think that particular
discussion involves policy considerations, priorities and resources. And I understand that
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for at least a while now the priority for the division has been with respect to maintaining
and ensuring that the integrity of our current system is there. And so there's really been
little money left to go into, you know, perhaps some other areas other than to maintain
the integrity of our system. And so that's led us to believe to, or, what's that led to is
taking care of infill existing development and making sure that those are taken care of.
In terms of new development coming on board, you know, I think that's really a policy
decision driven by prioritizing because of whatever limitations there are in terms of
resources.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: But what about, again, my, my specific point about your
Department or your Division having a stronger comment regarding the, you know, from a
planning standpoint again, yeah, for us it's a money issue as well as a facility CIP issue.
But, you know, when I see applications come before our Land Use Committee, and I'm
reading the comments on their so-called proposed private system, and you folks are not
objecting to that, I have concerns because I have already supported your Division's
increase for sewer rate annual, annual increases and whatnot to cover costs, and yet you
folks are not objecting to these private systems that won't connect to the County system
and help defray or, or spread out the cost of that program.
MS. OKUMA: Okay. You know, we have discussed that internally, but I think what it really,
and I understand and hear what you're saying. And I think it still does boil down to
whether or not it, it's affordable without having to go through, you know, unnecessary,
incredible rate increases. And so you're, you're stuck with one of two things. One, is the
developer has to build and pay for their own, or the other is that they connect. And so
when we look at that, and we look at connecting up to the system, County system, and
what that would cost in terms of either increasing capacities, extending transmissions,
you know, it's, it's not a cheap cost. I, so I don't know that I, I have a good answer for
you right now, but I certainly hear where you're coming from.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Does your Division currently do that financial analysis?
MS. OKUMA: From the standpoint of what that means in term of rate increases, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: I think that would be helpful in sharing as we go through
specific applications what that analysis is because that would, I think would assist the
Members in making some important decisions down the road. Thank you very much for
my opportunity.
CHAIR BAlSA: Oh, thank you, Member Hokama. Any further questions for Director Okuma?
If not, Director, thank you very much for being here today, and I'm sorry you had to wait
so long, but very good information. Thank you.
MS. OKUMA: Thank you.
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CHAIR BAISA: And our next person who will be speaking, let's talk with our Deputy from the
Water Department please, Eric Yamashige. I know you're a very busy man, and I dread
having you sit here, but ... (short pause) . .. we have our Deputy Water Director, Eric
Yamashige. Eric, any comments on this issue, please?
MR. YAMASHIGE: Yes, good morning, Madam Chair, -CHAIR BAISA: Good morning.
MR. Y AMASHIGE: --Members. Thank you very much for inviting us. It was very
educational. As Chair Hokama had commented our success or really the rate of our
success puts the Departments and actually the County in a very challenging position. The
reports that the Planning Department has initiated and actually Kathleen's update are
great. Projects or projections may be high or low, and unfortunately the rules change,
you know, as we go along. And excuse the pun, but we do have to be fluid.
You know, just looking at the reports that were prepared I would like to believe them
because we'd still be in a pretty good position. But unfortunately, it's about ten years
behind and that's what projections do. So we're in a challenging position. The
Department is working on it and, yes, we do review each application individually and not
necessarily with the plan but with the information that we have in the Department.
CHAIR BAISA: Thank you very much. Members, questions for Mr. Yamashige? Member
Johnson.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Thanks very much, Eric, I appreciate your attendance and your
patience with us too. I know that in the past your comments when we get land use
applications, and we're looking at capacity issues, your comment, I think it was made
earlier by the Planning Department, was that, well, it's just a general statement that you
won't know if you're going to have water available until you actually apply for your
meter at that point in time. So there's no guarantee on Department of the availability of
the water. And so now as, you know, we're going through other issues of trying to nail
down, well, do you have water or do you not have water. Do you have any, I guess, input
as to, regards Member Mateo's request for infrastructure study, or can you just say right
off the bat, look, you know, we're way behind, and we need to stop the train?
MR. YAMASHIGE: I would like to say the reports that I'm sure you all had a chance to review
and that I had a chance to review in preparation for coming this morning, really identifies
a lot of the plans that we had for the development of water and the timing for that
development. Like I said the rules do change, and it's amazing how long the
development of source takes. You know, I'm sure we all realize what happened up at
Pookela, but that's not the only source that we're having challenges in trying to meet the
deadlines.
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If you're asking me if we need to do another study, I, I don't think so. I think you have
some great studies already in hand. It's, our success, as Chair Hokama mentioned, puts
us behind those reports, but I, I don't think we need to do another one.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yeah, and that's not really what I was asking. I was asking that in
terms of your communication as to, I guess the Council and what Member Mateo is
driving at is, you know, he's looking at where's the information? Ifwe already have it in
existence in all these other studies, then, for example, and I'm not, you know, these are
my words not his. If you, as a Department, are asked to comment as was noted by the
Planning Department, if you're being asked to comment on whether we have adequate
infrastructure in place or whether we don't, will your comment continue to be the same
old, same old comment? Or are you now, in light of all this new information, plus the
continued drought, and the continuous letters from our constituents about why you're
asking to cut back is it just so you can give more meters out to, you know, non-existing
current users, you know, what is, what is your response going to be?
MR. Y AMASHIGE: Thank you. We certainly have a better handle on where things are as
projections have kind of fallen out. Obviously, we're in a much tighter situation than we
thought we would be and, yes, I hope that we would be, not more forthright, that we will
comment as, as, as much as we can to, to really reflect the picture that we have. So ...
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Okay. And this means that the Planning comment period when the
commission reviews a lot of these, 'cause a lot of the applications don't even come to us.
MR. YAMASHIGE: Oh, yeah, we do participate in the Planning Commissions, and we do have
to respond quite a bit at that level.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Okay. And you'll be responding as you always have with the cover
your backside letter?
MR. YAMASHIGE: We will always cover our backside but, but we -COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: That's honest, Mr. Yamashige.
MR. YAMASHIGE: --we will be commenting appropriately.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Okay. Well, that's, that's refreshing. But, you know, sometimes
frustrating for those of us who have to look at the applications, and you know, weigh
everything. Thank you.
MR. YAMASHIGE: Yes.
CHAIR BAlSA: Member Hokama?
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COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Thank you. Mr. Yamashige, I think part of the infrastructure
study, that component that we might be interested in, and that would be from your
Planning Division, is how the water use development plans can assist us regarding
planning, land use applications, appropriation of water funds or general funds support for
specific things. And I've been around long enough to see stacks of Brown & Caldwell
reports of what we should do for transmission, what we should do for distribution, what
we should do for source development, and I agree it's a very fluid picture. And we, you
know, in the past years we gave you a lot of money, but unfortunately, and I'm aware of
how the bids came back, came a question of whether or not the project was still worthy
for the type of monies the contractors were asking to do, to do that specific project,
particularly, when subcontractors providing bids that were greater than the total amount
we appropriated for the whole project. So I understand some of the challenges you are
facing.
But I think it's important that what you're hearing from the Committee is that, you know,
Ms. Johnson brings up the, the word drought. Well, it's going to come a point in time
where instead of calling it a drought that is what we may have to consider to be the
climate norm and that's how it's going to be. Okay, and there's some things we just have
to bite our tongues and say we have no control over certain aspects, factors that impact
us, but we have no control over. And than whether it be in a greater governmental level
like the Federal Government, or an international thing about what other countries are
doing, nonetheless, we still deal with impacts at home.
So saying that, is the Department looking at approaching your infrastructure because I
consider you one, like a utility, and so I would assume that maybe now we need to
project more that this so-called drought is our norm, and now we need to adjust what is
going to be the need of a cushion between what we can totally pump per day and sustain,
and make appropriate adjustments regarding population. And, again, I always tell the
Chair of this Committee, people don't like to talk about population management, you
know. But we live on an island, and it's something you have to talk about if we're going
to make good decisions. So you need to help us with those types of things,
Mr. Yamashige, because if you tell us at the current stage if we make those adjustments,
this island cannot have more than 175,000 people under current conditions, I rather you
make that error conserving the aquifers and the ability of this island to still exist and
move forward, than to be too optimistic, and us being behind the eight-ball and people
having no drinking water until we come up with a solution.
So if you're going to err I would hope you would err on the side of being conservative
and not overly optimistic because we cannot afford to be overly optimistic and fail when
it comes to water. You have any thoughts you might want to share with the Committee
please?
CHAIR BAlSA: Mr. Yamashige.
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MR. YAMASHIGE: Thank you, Madam Chair. It is interesting when you, when you look at the
situation we're in, and what, really what the whole country is facing. You know, rainfall
is only about 40 percent of the norm. You're right, you know, we, we may be starting to
realize what will be. One thing that we do see is we on Maui are so blessed with the
resources that we have. We really need to take a harder look at the way we use these
resources, and certainly water is, you know, one of those very important resources.
You notice that the Up country people can respond to requests for conservation, and they
can meet their marks. We, and I do live in Central Maui, don't know how to conserve.
It's something that the Department is making a very strong effort to educate the people in
Central Maui. But, you know, education takes a little bit of time. So we're hoping,
actually I'm hoping that people realize how important the resource is and how they can
live, you know, within the, really the means of the system. We are certainly looking at,
you know, source development, and I like to be optimistic although I am, I am an
engineer, and you know, that kind of holds me down. But ...
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: It's an honorable profession, Mr. Yamashige.
MR. YAMASHIGE: Thank you. The second oldest, also. Yeah, you know, we'll be cautiously
optimistic, and we are certainly looking at hitting some of our marks, you know, as we
deal with the conditions that we have to face. But I certainly understand that we do want
to be cautious about where we go.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: You know, I'm glad you brought up conservation, 'cause that
should be already a plan in place and our community should have general understanding
of why we're going to ask for certain voluntary compliances. I can tell you, you know,
I've got, had a lot of appointments in my office, a lot of phone calls, and I would say, I'm
sure the Department is aware of this planning issue also 'cause the main question is my
conservation means what for the County. Because they don't see it to their advantage,
especially when other components in their point of view is then taking the conservation
or reduction that they're doing and someone else is utilizing for their, this other benefit.
So comes the question, why then am I conserving 10 percent, 20, because, you know, my
grass is green, but I look at these other properties on other places on the island, it's green,
and their water features are flowing, and I don't see a problem for them. Where is their
20 percent conservation? And that's the reality of what's happening. You know that.
You live, you hear what your neighbors tell you. I get it every day. Look at my grass,
but look at this guy's grass. You know, so, you know, I'm just sharing that.
But from a planning standpoint, again, Mr. Yamashige, I think part of what I would agree
with Mr. Mateo is that prior to us being in this place, and I come back to my favorite
phrase, water use development plan, because just fortunately Lanai has one, and it's
being updated, and Maui island still needs to have one. Should certain situations occur
the community has agreement on water allocation. And in our island's water allocation
plan the last impacted group on conservation and water cutback is the resident. Yeah,
over here it appears that the resident is the first impacted and the first to ask to reduce
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water. Okay. On Lanai they're the last that gets impacted. Everybody else has to cut
back first, and if we can meet our needs fine, but if not, then the resident is asked to also
support and contribute to the island's requirements, but that's understood. It's in our
plan.
And I, I think these are the kinds of things that could assist us in the future because the
community knows where the priorities are and who gets water first. And then the priority
of who gets conservation, who gets the reductions, or as other municipalities and cities
have, they get water police. If their sprinkler is watering the road they going get a fine.
A fine, and it's going to be added to their water bill. Okay. If you do this, you pay "X".
Las Vegas, I think Clark County, you know, people pay that I've been told, like $400 a
month for water, Chair, because after they go over certain months under certain
conditions they are required to pay an additional charge because they're water hogs, but
they're going to have, and they're going to pay for it. So these are the things that as
planning tools I would ask you to consider and that maybe help us better achieve our
goals as we move down the road. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR BAlSA: Thank you, Mr. Hokama. And, you know, of course you're singing my song,
because I'm very much into conservation, and I, I'm not too sympathetic about the
concern over cutbacks or requirements. I've lived with them all my life ... (change tape,
start 3B) . .. and so has all the Up country residents and we don't like our lawns being
brown, and we don't like having to, you know, wash our car at the car wash down
country, because we can't do it in our yard, and seeing farmers not being able to plant
crops that they would like to plant while we see water being wasted. And I think this is a
debate and an issue that our community needs to have, and I think that what is going on
now is kind of a blessing in disguise, because it's making all of us look at our water, and
how we use it, and is there a better way for us to make better use of the limited resources
we have while we look for additional resources. And I know that the Water Department
is doing everything they can to try to accelerate their resource development, but there's
only so much they can do in a very short time.
But this is a really healthy discussion, however, the Chair, as you know, is a stickler on
time. I was brought up by a mother who taught me to be prompt. It is now 12:00 and all
of the Council Members have a meeting at 1:30. So what I'd like to do is, if you don't
mind, I would like to first of all close public testimony for today with no objections?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR BAlSA: Secondly, I would like to defer this issue and bring it up again at our next
meeting. We'll have it as the first item, and then we will also defer PC-32.
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ITEM NO. 32:

2003 PAIA BUSINESS CAPACITY STUDY AND PAIA STRATEGIC
PLAN (C.C. No. 05-112)

CHAIR BAlSA: And that works out very well because the person who would be preparing the
reports in the, in Item 32 was not able to be here today, and she had asked that we bring it
back at another date. So this would work very well. And of course, we'll bring those
Department Directors who were not able to get on the calendar today.
I'd like to thank you very much for being here. And again, I apologize, but you know,
there's only so much time in a meeting, and we never know how things are going to go.
But I think it's really, really important that we discuss these things. You know, planning,
we all joke about planning and we say, oh well, you know, it's just a plan and it's not in
concrete or whatever, but I think we need to spend the time and the energy to sit down
and talk about what's going on and where we'd like to be and try our best to commit to
planning even though we know that it probably will change because, you know, nobody's
delivered the stone tablets here yet. But it's important because it gives all of us
guidelines and where we need to go, and I think we'll do a better job as the elected
officials, and Department Directors, and people in charge of Maui and Maui County if we
have guidelines. So I think this is time well spent. I really appreciate all the resources
that came here today. I thank the Planning Department for all the hard work that you're
doing, and I'd like to thank the Staff and the Members of my Committe:e who are so
dedicated to what we're trying to do here. And without any objections, I'd like to
adjourn today's meeting and defer these items.
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
ACTION:

DEFER PENDING FURTHER DISCUSSION. (Item Nos. 23 and 32)

CHAIR BAlSA: So thank you very much. The meeting is adjourned. . .. (gavel) . ..

ADJOURN:

12:03 p.m.

Transcribed by: Jessica Cahill

pc:min:071002
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